INTERVIEW WITH
0. Hatfiald Chilaon
by

Thomas ¥, Soapes
Oral Historian

o
March 18, 197&
for

Dwight D. Eisenhower Library



GENERAL SERVICES ADMII‘.‘-IISTRATIGH
NATIOMAL ARCHIVES AND RECORDS SERVICE
I'WIGHT D, EISENHOWER LIBERARY

Legal Agreement Pertaining to the Oral History Interview of
0. Hatfield Chilson

In accordance with the Provisions of Chapter 21 of Title a4,

United States Code, and subject to the terms ang conditipng

hereinafter =et forth, I, O. Hatfield Chilsen {hereinafter
referred to ms the donor), do hereby give; donate, and convey
te the United States of Amerien 2ll my rights, title, ang
interest in the tape recording and transcript of a Personal
interview conducted on Mareh 18, 1976 and Prepared for
deposit in the Dwight D, Eisenhower Library, fThis assignment
is subject to the following terms and conditions:

(L) The tran3crip% shall be available for use hy
TCSe2rchers as soon ag it has been deposited in the
Dwight D. Eisenhower Library.

{2)  The tape recording shall not he available for use
by researchers during the donor's lifetime. After the donor's
death, aecess to the tape recording is to be for background
use only, and researchers may not atte, paraphrase, or gquote
therefrom.

(3) The doncr retains during the donor's lifetime all

literary property rights in the material given to the United



States by the terms of this instrument. Thereafter the
aforesaid literary PEOpErty rights will pass to the United
States Government. During the life of the donor, researchers
may publish brief "fair yse" gquotations from the transeript
{but net the tape recording) without the donor's express
consent in each case.

{4) Copies of the epén portions of the interview
transcript, but not the tape recording, may be provided by
the library upon requast to ressarchers,

(3) At the discretion of the Archivist of the United

States, copies of the interview transeript, but not the tape
recording, may he deposgited in or loanesd to other institutions.
Upon death of doner, at the diacretion of the Archivist of the
United States, copies of the tape recording may he deposited

in or loared to other institutions.

Ardhivist of the United States

¥ 17 -




This interview 18 being taped with Judge Hatfield chilson in
his chambers in Denver, Colorado, on March 1B, 1976. fThe
intorviewer is Dy, Thomas soapes of the Eisenhower Library,
Present for the interview are Judge Chilson and Dr, Socapes.

DR. SOAPES: Firvst af all, Judge Chil=on, would you tell me

whizn and where yvou were born and about yvour early aducation?

JULRGE CHILSON: I was boarp in Pueblo, Calorade, Novembor 22,

1803 and from 1906 to 1918 T lived in Merced, California, after
which I returned to Pusblo, Coelorade. I attended elementary
schools in Morced and in Puello, gradvated from Pushlo Centennial
High School in 1922, I attended the University of Celerada from
1922 until 1927, graduated with an LLE degree. That's the

extent of my formal education,

DR. SOAPES: As soon as you completed that edueation, what g§id

Vo do?

JUDGE CHTLSON: T took the bar examination in Coloradeo and

went to the San Luis valley and practiced law. Was thore a
short time and went to northeastern Colorado. After approxi-
mately a year in Greeleay, Colorade, I formed a partnership with

4 Mr. Remans of Loveland, Colorado--

DR. BORPES: He spells that R-g-m-a-n-g?
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CHILEON: Correct. fe died in 1938, continued the practice

of law in Lovelandg, Celorads, until 1956 when I went back to

SOAPES: Now dig You at any time during this pering participate

in politics?

CHILEON: Yes. T hecape active in pplitiecs immediarely after
1 got out of school ip Lhe way of Participating in precipet
ERUCUSes, county asseinblies, and =so on and so forth, I ran

for districk Altorney of the 8+th Judicial pistriet in Colorada,
which was a district composed of four counties in northeastern
Colorado. 1 wasg elected in 1940, was re~elected in 1944 apg
Served until 1948, ghat was the only elective office. I had
held some Publie offices such as city abttorney of Loveland,

town attorney of Estes Park, but nothing of an eleclive nature,
Although during this period of time T did participate actively
in Republican politics and was generally known to be 3

Republican and active worker in the party.

SOAPEE: Did yvou holg jobs like county eommittesman?
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CHILSON: No, 1 did not,

SOAFES: I believe also during this time veu did some work in

Lhe conservation field with the Big Thompson project?

CHILSON: Yes. I was trying to get the date. I took an

interest in the Colorade Big Thompson project from the time of
its proposal in the 1930s. I served as a dircctor of the
district for a period of bime, and I°‘ve forgotton the dates.

I Served about, oh, 1851 to 1955. Also during that peried of
time I was one of the leaders in organizing and oparating the
first soil conservation district in northern Colorado known

as the Rig Thompson Soil Conservabicon District. T did a oo
deal of legal work in the water field and, as a result, was

interested partiecularly in water conssrvation.

SOAPES: What was it that drew you inte this type of work?

CHILS0H: Well the water work and my participation as a lawyer
in that field was dictated by my clients. If T hadn't had any
clients who had water business, I wouldn't have had bthe watoer

practice. 50 that's the answer to that. But it's soon apparent
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to anyone living in that kind of anintensified, agricultural
area that conservation is most important in all featuros. The
waler, elimination of noxious weeds, and crop rotation, the
preservation of the soil to keep It from blowing and eroding,
contour farming on dry land--—-of coursge Lhat's almost necessary
on the irrigated land--and that sort of thing makes evarybody
wha's interested in the agriculture of the area become inter—

estied in gonservabion,

SOAFES: Were your clients utility-type inlerests--producers—-

or wore thay users?

CHITSON: They were both. The irrigation in that part of the
state of Colorado was, although not entirely, almost entirely
developed by mutual ditch and reservoir companies, a group of
farmers lhat gather and form a non-profit corporation to build
a ditch. and so they go to the stream, they build a dam, they
build a diteh, take the water, apply it to their lands, and by
30 doing under Colorado's water law, they aeguired what's known
@5 & water right. And the rights are recognized by priority

appropriation--first in time, first in line. and =o my clients
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wera largely either individuwal facomers who had a particular
individual walter problem or mutual ditch and reservolr com-

panies who had problems in the cperation of their aystems,

SUAPES: Did vou have much contact with the federal government

in the '40s in this work?

CHILSON: Only through Lhe Bureau of Reclamation., And because
this was 3 very large and at that time, gquite a novel project,
it regeivad a lot pf publicity and a lot of attenticn and a

lot of interest. It involved the building of a tunnel under

the Continental Divide and Bringing waler from one Continental
Divide to the other. &nd so, because of that and boeause the
use of the waler that was brought to the ezstern slope Trom

the western slope by the colorade Blg Thompson project was
governed by water contracts with the fedeoral governmnent,
specifically the Bureau of Reclamation. Of course, we did

have a lot of contact with that hranch of the federal govern-
ment and later with the pewer branch of the Department of the
Interior because of a certain polieies that Secretary [Harold ]
[cKes Tiad adopted with respect te the use of the powar generated

by the project.
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SOAPES: What was the general feeling in this paxt of the
countyy towards the reclamation and conservation policies of

Fhe Truman administration? Were they popular, unpepular?

CHILSOR: Well, by the time Mr. Truwan brcame President, I
don'L think the Truwan administration had any particular impact
Upen our wWater resources. I don't recall that there wera any
particular policies that created any great probleéms in the
sfate of Colorade. Of course, mining, when the Korean War was
ovaer, took a tumble, but our mining interests here, the larae
mines that we had in colorado wore largely gold, silver, lead,
and zine. And Lhey had been in the doldrums for many, many

Years, And 80 1 can't recall that the Truman administration

had any particular impact in the natural resource area in Colorado.

SOAPES: One of the historians who's writlen on this subject--
an both the Truman and Elsenhower pericd--has mentioned that

the 1952 election for the West was really a protest vote against
further federal land acquisitien and bureaucratic dictatorship
Ernﬁ Washington. Was that a theme that politicians talked

about freguently out here in, say, 1950, 19533
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CHILSON: Well, of course, Liwe dims your nemory, but Iy
recollection of Lhal pericd of kime, at the time that President
Eisonhower was elected and he began to develop his poliey or
pplicies ftoward the development of natural resources, he was
aonfronted with the fact that over a long period of time there
had developed the theory and feeling under previous secretaxry
oi the intericdr administrations that yvou had to eonservae the
nztural respurces so that yu;‘d have them there a hundred
years Trom now Lo take care of the people and 50 on a hundred
years from now. President Bisenhower Felt for a number of
reasons--and I can't speak for him entirvely and, again, momery
dims your recall--but it scoon became apparent Lthat the Pacific

Yorthwest had a terrific power problem. They had bhrown outs,

They had no fossil fuels. The closest supply of il and gas
was Canada, and the Canadians were nol Loo favorable about

Lhe exportation. &nd the Pacific Northwest desperately needed
power. And so Chey had to lock to water powar which was their
only source of power generation Lhat they had in the area. And,
aof course, that developed then the "giveaway"attacks upon Mr.

[ouglas] McKay, who was the Secretary of the Interior, over



Judge Hatfield Chilspn; 3-18-75 Paga 8

whether or not these dam sites thiat were available up there
should be developed. President Eisenhower, during this period
gf time, 1f I read the record accurately, came to bthe conclusion
that vou couldn't tie up all tha natural resources of this
country becsuse it might be nesded a3 hundred years from now.
That there zhould bhe developmenk, but that there should e a
multiple purpose use of development. You should never develop

a natural resource for one purpose if in the course of develop-
ing it you could use it for two or three purposes, For example,
d reservoir might be used to store water for hydro-glectrie
power for municipal use, water uwse, for irrigation bul also it
could be used for recreation., Se the President, as I say if I

understand correctly, said now there is such a demard for all

of these things that we can't Iocok Lo any one segment of govern-
ment to do the job., We can't leck Lo the federal government

to do it hecause the federal governmenl ecan't do it by itself.
You pan't look to the states to do it alone nor to municipalities
ar any obther agencies. That this has got Lo be a partnership

of local, state and natiunél government, and the developmant

has got to be done with conservation in mind so that you don't

exploit a ressource for one purpose and leave it completely
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useless for other purposces which could have bean acoomplished
parallel with the principal development. 2nd, of course,

that was centrary to the feeling that existad at that time
among a large number of the populace that had GIown up undor
the withdrawal from develcpinent ‘of publie lands, power sites
and so forth and so on that had occurred under previous
sdministrations. And as a result, very severe criticism was
leveled against the President and Mr. MeKay, who was Secretary
of the Interior, Decause of the attempt to change dirgction

of the bureancracy and the people, so that they could do what
Lhey needed to do. And that's about the best that I can OXPress

it in the resource field.

SQAPES:  From your recollection, who were the people who were

mast vocal in their criticism of MoKay?

CHILSON: Well, I would not attempl to name individuals; 1°'11

name groups.

SOAPES: Fine,

CHILSON: They were grouped together at that time and were

commonly ealled the conservationists. Today they prebably
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would be called envircnmentalists, Boevertheless, it ia some-
what of the same type of thinking that lead to the formation
of the conservation groups--tle Sierrsa Club was aclLive and
very active in opposing all reclamation. I shouldn's say all
reclamation because I don't know about all reclamation, but
Opposing many projects that T know of for reclamstien. The
Tish and wildlife organizations didn't like the idea of the
dams in the Pacifie Northwesl bacause Lhey were afraid that it
was going to make the salmon extinet in certain rivers and so
on. You had the same groups at that time who helisved lhat
even though there wore rescurces available in public lands or
on public lands that were very useful that, navertheless, as
between goals-—the goal of developing them for lhe publie use
and the goal of presezrving them for future gonerations. For

exanple, you should not mine Becausa it destroys the beauty

of the scenery that should be maintained as wildierness,
Eveninally, as you know, the wilderness concept wWas adopted

in a modified form by Congress and we do have wilderness areas,
and rightfully so, We have certain areas in certain rivers

put away so we do have a preservation of =some things in their
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natural state or as near a natural state as it's poasible
to da. So it's the same conlest that's going on today and
probably the same coniest that will he gaing on a hundred

Years Irom now.

SOAPES: Can T make a generalization from what you've said

that the debate between the Eisenbower administration and ike
critics was betwsen one group that said@ let's Presserve ovary—
thing as is, or most 2verything as is, versus the administra-

tion's argument--let's preserve and usa,

CHILSON: Yes. Tt all boils down really to that. Excaept that
perhaps just as important was the view that eventually prevailed,
and which is the more moderate view, which was this malti-

wrpese use. Now President Eisenhower was wvery much of the
PYIT

opinicn that neilher of the extrome views were the correct
views. For example, this just eomes to mind and hew much the
record will reflect it I'm not sure becausse I 'm speaking from
memory, but for years they had pending in the Cangross what
they called the Coordination Acts. The fish and wildlife
devotees throughdut the country and the people interested in

recreation and the bureaus within the government who were
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interested in fish and wildlife and recreation as well as
development, we had them all in the Department of the Tnterior.
Tn other words it was a big sgualling family. fThe fish and
wildlife were not interested in developing a reclamation pro-
Ject, they were intercsted in preserving the fish and wildlife
af the area. 5o what the Burcau of Reclamatien; even Ehough
they were in the sams Department of the Interior, they were
certainly net friends. So you had all this division of opinion
Lthrust uwpon vou all the time Trom every side. Well, the Presi-
dent made it vepy clear that he did net belicve in the extremisis
on epither side of this bub that there should be an opportunity
given before a project was built to sece what other uses beside

the prime use and what olher purposes could be accemplished,

and that that zhould be done before the project got so Ffar that
it was Frozen, Ard a good axample of that, of course, is Lhe
building of a Bureaw of Reclamation reservoir., fThe primary
purpose is Lo store water for use or the fevelopment of hwdro-
electrie power. Bubk the fish and wildlife poople and the
recreation people were always asking for the opportunity toe

be heard during the planning period. The Pureau of Reclamation

were not interested in going to a lot of expense through the
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study of this and that and the other thing because they had

ore job, you see--build the reservoir and get the water. So
They had these Coordination Acts pending in Congress over gquite
a long period of time but could never move them. President
Eisenhower Eold Seeretary Seaton that there ought to be some
way that fhese people could be heard during the planning period
and =0 Secrelary Seaton then talked to me about il and he said,
‘Now, I'm going to shove off on you the job of trying Lo get
these Coordipaltion Acts pEssed, " or the pending legislation.
and wilthout going into long detail, we eventually consolidated
enough support within Lhe administration--the Burcau of the
Budget, and Defense, Agriculture, and sverybody else that's

interested--we developed encugh support Lhat we were finally

able teo go before the committee, I think Congressman [John D.}
Dingell was the chajrman of Lhe committee, and tell him that
with the President's blessing we were here to sunport the
Conrdination Acts. And he said, "Well, T think Lhe world has
come b an end, " betcause he was deliyhted, this was one of his--
and they d8id pass. Aand since that time the recreation people,

the f£isgh and wildlife people, and the other intercsted Aagencies
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have an opportunity Le bhe heard about rheir gesires and what
They think they could aceomplish with this project in addition
to the prime purpose of the projeéct of reclaiming water by

the Bureau of Reclamation reserveir, That's, I think, a vary
good example of the right way and, at least, what the President

thought was the right way that it should be done.

SOAPES: Were there people within the administration who cpposad

these Coordination ARcks?

CHILGON: Hot because they were Coordinalicn Acts. Badgek
vsually would oppose anvthing Lthat would create a problem  for
them by way of finances and their gsetting up their budget within
what Lhay believed would be a realistic figure. MNow that isn‘t
correct, of course, when I say always, but it is an important
factor. And unless they think a program is8 of very great
importance, they may well sither oppos2 it or may not openly
oppose it bul be very lukewarm toward it. ang when we get to
helium, I can tell you about what happeaned there, which iz a
good example of the interactiona that you have within the

administration itsslf. When T say within the administration,
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I don't mean within the White louse corps and I don't mean
within the Cabinet members or the policy members of Lhe
administration that are appointed by the President. I'm
talking about the old-line burcaus and the agencies who are
run by career peoble and who formilate to a3 large extent the
dbjects and purposes of that parkticular agency or buroau.

S0 consequently they peint out what effect this ig going to
hava, we'll say, on the Commerce Department and the Secratary
of Commerce might well express himself Lo his President, "Well
thi=z might on the face of it look like a great Lhing, but hera's
what my people tell me i3 going Lo result in our area of opera-
Lion, HNow they're not concerned with our ares of aoerabion,

but I am, and 1 think you oughlb to know as Fresident rhat

before you endorse this program, whatl it might da." 8o that's
the way it worked during the time that I was there. and I

as5syume——

[Interruption]

SOAPES: Did you know Douglas MoKay pordonally?
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CHILSGN: Well, I met him, but that's alxut 1%, T JYan Ve
knoew him before 1 went to Washington, met him on either one
or two accasions back there, but T had no acquaintance wilkh

Fim,

SOAFPEE: Now did you participate in the '52 campaign in any

capacity?

CHILEOW: Well only as T had always participated as a Republican.
As. I remembier, I was a delegate to our county convention, and
delvgata o rthe state convention. As a matter of fack, if T
remeiiber correctly, in 1952 1 ave the keynote spoaech at the
Republican slate convention., But beyond that, ne. Even thoush
Fresident Elsenhower had a headguarters at the Brown Palace

Hotoel--you prokably know that.

SOAPES . Yas.

CHILSON: T was net among the gqroup that was prominent znough
to have been asked Lo come down and meet him and s0 on and so
forth. T was a counlry lawyer from up north and I liked ko
participate in polities, thought it was everybody 's duty to de

S0k,
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RUAPES: Pid vou know Dan Thornton?

CHILSON:  Yes, guite well, as a malter of Fact, Judge [Jean 5. ]
Breitenstein of the circuit court of Appeals, 10th Cfircuit

Court of App=als, was altorney for the colorade Waler Conserva-
tion Board (hat handles interstate waler matters for tha slate
of Colorado. 2nd at Lhe time Judge Breitenstein went on the
nench Thornton had te get a replacement and there was very
bitter dissension between the aast slope and the west slope.

You mey have heard of it--about the diversion of walter from--

SOAPES: T'm not familiar with L&,

LHILSON: Well it all boils down, they had most of the water
and we had mest of the people, and so Lhe inereasing demand

For water on this side and the diversions, trang-mountain

diversions from the Colersdo River on tha west slope for use

over horo eceated great dissensian. S0 Governor Thornton was
rather in a spot in that he couldn't appoint a lawyer far the
Water Conservation Board Trom Demver, and 2o he came to see

me Lo see If I'd take it. And I'm sure it was at the recommenda-

tion of Judge Breitenstein because we had both been water lawyers
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over a period of time and been well acguainted. 8o I took
that job on. &and i{hen Governor Thernton, whoe everyboedy thought
was going to run for the United States Sepate in '56, announced
that he was not going to run., So I announced my candidacy for
the United States Sepate. ‘Then he changed his mind and wanted
to run., And he'd baen two times governor in the state and
quite an active Republican, so T told him that he was cortainly
@ntitled to run unopposed by me and that if he would make his
announcement I'd nominate him and I did. aAnd it was after that
Lthat T was approachaed hy Rocretary Scalton to go with him in
the Interier Department. What effect that little incident had
ort the selection T don't know and never did. Don't know to
this day why Mr. Seaton came up to northern Coloraids 1o get a

secretary, but it turned gut that way.

SOAPES: Thornton, his persenality, how would you describe Lhat?

CHILSON: Well, I don't like the word at all, Tut lots of
charisma. I would use the Lerm flamboyant, but that's too
extreme, It was more mwodified than that, But he was a ecolorful

figure; he made his reputation in raising cattle and he §id s
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good job of it., He zoid two bulls for Tifty thousand dollars
apicce and had them down in the Iobby of the Brown Palace
Hotel on show, during the slock =how. But guite an ahile
fellew and guite sound and very reliable, and 1 thought he

made an excoellent UoVeranor,

SOAPES: Turning now Lo your move to Washington in '58, had

you ever met Fred Seaton before? pig you know him?

CHILSON: The Tirst time T mst Pred Seaton was when hey dedi-
cated a portion of the Colorado Rig Thompson project and they
had the celebraticn at Toveland. I knew quite a few of the
Burcau people, ineluding Me, [Wilbur A.] Dexheiner who was a

griaduate of the, what we then called Colerado Agricultural

College at Fort collins. a Coloradoan, and 1've known him and
T knew quite a few of the Bureau People.  And Senatoer | Gordon]
Allott was going to he there and he was in srhool when T was,

good friend; we hoth originated in Pueblo. So I knew it wag

going to be a long, strung-eut occagion and se I suggaested to
Senator Alletl that why didn't he come over Lo my home and

take a pap in the afterncon and then we would have some people
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in bafore they went to the steak fry up in the motintsing.,

"Well,"™ ha said, "7 can't. I've got tha sacretary of
interior with me."

And I said, "well, bring him along, "

And B0 Senator Allott, Secrotary Ssaten and soma of |he
Buresuy of Reclamation people came bver to my house before wa

went on the picnic and steak fry, first cims I had met him,

SOAPES: This was 19567

LHTLEON: This was '56, oo shortly afler that t got either a
letter or a telephone call from him asking me if T would come
Back and talk to him, that he had a job that he'd like for me
to do, and 1 assumed that it wag some kind of a Apeaking campaign
for a person wpntil 1 got back there. 8o 1'd hog ng contact

with him at alil.,

SCAPES: Now this was tha appointment as the assistant secratary

for land management?

CHILSON: Yes,

SOAPES: what essentially was voor job? What was the Ecope of

your responsibilities in that position?
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CAITE0OR: They divided the Interier Department inte groups,

and they don't always stay the mame. I'm sure every secretary
may change them around. At that time, if I can recall, undsr
land managemant secretaryship fell the Bureag of Land Managemant,
the Bureauw of Indisn Affairs, ithe Wational Park Service, tha
Office of Territories (which covered the Virgin Islands, Puerto
Rico, Guam, Alaska, and Hawaii)l. I'm sure there was ancolhar

one, don't recall i+,

EGAPES: We can check that one out,

CHILEON: OQuite a wide varistion of interests and so forth,
and very interesting to someone whe had had no previouas

kparience with this type of administration.

SOAPES: What were the principal problems that you had to deal

with Bs vou came into the edminizliratiop?

CHILBON: Well one of Lhe big problems was a rcom full of paper
becanse the ofifice had beean wvacant for some btime, and this was
moraly a Lemporary appointment. If President BEisanhower had

not been re~-elected, my job would have wound up in January,
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which was 811 right. I knew that and 1t was all rpight becosusa
I had no intention of staying. 'This I looked on 3s a kind of
a military serxvice sort of thing and agreed to go for a year,
ended up staying two. Glad T did. But I always intended to
come back to Colerado and practice law,

well, not having had any background of experienca armd
tolorade having practically no Indian roservations, one small
ona way down in Lhe soonthwest corner of the stale, T think
probably the problems that made the yrestest impact on me were
indian problems, becaase they've always hod problems and still
have proklems and hopefully they're being soived, bot it's a
vary slow process. And the problems that I deslt with back
thore were those that were immediately pending and had some
urgancy. At that time there woere some teérmination programs
gning on whare the trusteeship of the federal government was
Being Lerminated and the Indians ware no longer under federal
trusteeship and they took over their property, operated it
themselves theoretically snd so on.

We ware having a lot of trouble at that tims, and I assume

they still zre up in Soath Dakota, the Rossabud and the FPine

Ridge and so on and so forth. The problem there being how the
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Ingians could really get the financial rewards out of the land
that they ocwned. And I was no expert, and never did become
expert in the prohlems up there, but generally T gathared
that (& large part of it was grazing land) they lease the grazing
tand to the white cattle growers and the cattle ranchers up
there rather than ranching it themselves. WNever came Lo any
conclusion on the problem but these were problems that hit me
sart of out of the blue, kKnew nothing about them. But they
needed attention, they needed some decision at the policy
level. The factwal matter, of course, you get from those old-
line bureauns. They can get three people in your office in a

hurry that probably have seventy-five years of expsrience

dealing with the problems that you are and they can give you
the benefit of it, and that's the way the railroad runs and not
too bad & aystem,

There were two Indian problems that finally had what T
thought was a good end result., One was the Klamath Indians
put in Oregon owned, I think, the larqgest virgin growth of
penderosa pine in the country, terrific forest, As a tribe,
they had had a timber oporation going that patd them dividends,

so to speak. But they decided that they wanted Lo terminate
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their federal supervision: they voied to do 1., But when
they voted Lo do it, thaey 1ndicated those who wWould leave
their interest in the forest in communal ownership with the
other members of the tribe, so they wouldn't have to sell it.
and ao Congress passed the termination act on the basis that
enaugh of the Indians would want to retain the forest, that
they could pay off the other Indians who wanked out, who
wanted their money nnd wanted out of the financial end of rthe
tribe, But after the act was passed and then the vote was
taken by the Indians under the act for termination and indicated
whathet or not they wanted their money, the great majority of
Lhem wanted their money. &nd hers they werd with the termina-
tion act passed, no possible way to get the money te pay off

all these people that anybody could ses. That was one of the

things that fell inte my lap. 5S¢ with the Oregon representa-
tives, Senator [Richard L.] Neuberger, who was guite ecooperative
in this venture, we with Lhe people in the Tndian bursaua and
with the forest experts and so on and so feorth, we [inally

in Interinr worked oubt a plan that those who wighed ke retain
communal ownership of a portion of the forest as their share

without taking it in money, that a certain part of the area
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be set aside for them. Then they could operate it as they saw
fit., For those who wanted their money ouk, we propesed that

we offer tha forest for sale to the timber companies, the large
timber companies, under a deal where they would operate it

on susltained yield management, where it would neveéer he clear-
logged and cut off and the forest destroyed, and, that if we
worg unable to get a satisfactory bid from the lumber companies,
Lhat the federal government would buy it and make it a natiomal
forest, throw it in with the national forest system. 'That
doesn't seem like such a big deal npow, Tut at that time, Lo
propose spending millions and millions of dollars of the
taxpayers’' money to buy up some Tndian forests and just make

it a part of the natbtional foreat, vou know, it certainly wasn't
too pooular wilthin the two houses of Congress to hegin with.

Bubt it evenlually passed and the last I heard, it's worked

very satisfactorily. Crown Zellerback [Corporation) , I think,

Tought. the greaker portion of it,

S0APES: On Indian problems in general, ——and I speak from
ignorancee here, I Jdon'L Enow Chab much about Indian policy--

but was there an articulalted approach te the Indian policy of
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reducing federal control of Indians or was this scmething Lhat

was sort of taken on a case-by-case basis?

CHILSON: Well I'm not sure about the guestion you have in your
mind. The Indian proklem, a5 we always sSpoKe of it, was related
only Lo about half the Indians in the United States, those were
the reservation Indians. A&nd you know the history of how thoy
got on the reservations is Lecause the development of the Indian
cauntries was such it just came about. Right or wrong, good oOr
tad i= now academic because the Isct remains that you have the
Mavahas out on the Navaho reservalbion; Yyou have Lthe Hopis on

the Hopi reservation; yeu'wve got Lthe Sioux up in South Dakota;

and you've got a2 condition and not a theory. HNow I'm not

expert enouwgh to know why we have an Indian problem and what
1 jearned while I was back there didn't give me any explanation.
and I think it's largely beeause, or at least to some extent
we don't understand how they think.

For example, the Palm Springs Indians, oub in Palm Springs,
california, they cwned the land around the area of the town of
Palm Springs, =till do. And they had & large tract of land,

T think it was a hundred and sixbty acres, that adjoined the
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main downtown area of Palm Springs, and nothing on it but a
bunch of shacks. The properkty was producing practically
nothing. I'm not sure who was responsible. bot someone,
prokably in the Indian burgau-—who the credit goes to 1I'm not
sure-—got a number of peouple with a lot of knew-how, people
who had great business experience, FPloyd Odlum for example
wha was head of Atlas Corporation—-they got Lhis committee

to get together to see what could be done about developing
this downtown area of Palm Springs which ia owned liy the
indians. The wvalue of the lands they had there was estimated
to bhe of a value of twe hundred and fifty thousand dollars Lo
pvery man, woman and child of that tribe and here they were

more or less poverbty stricken. MNo income, nothing, This

committes worked gut a plan where they got, I think it was
Magnin's and Bullock's in Los Angeles, big department stores,
and a bunch of others, and theéy agreed on a development. The
money would all he put up by the people geing Lo make the
development and it would produce the Indians a vexry., very
sizable income, -aAnd they put in a lot of work and time and

so on as you can understand. And they came up with this plan;g
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presented it to the Indians; the leaders said this was great.
go ahead. So the Interior Department went te Congress, they
kad Lo get an act of Conoress so they could make a long enough
lease that they could build these buildings and so on and so
forth. Well the eongressiponal committee that had this in
charge s#=id all right. The chairman said, "We're going out
ta cdifornia to have some hearings; we'll step in Palm Springs,
slay overnight, and have the hearing the next day and we ' 11
thert go ©n inte Los Angeles, take ecare of our other husineaa, "
and so they did. ‘They went in there, everything was all right.
The night hefore the meeting the Indian chiefs came in and
assured the committee this is what they wanted, it was great

and so on and so forth. "The next morning they called the

committes together, called the chiefs in Lo give their testimony,

the chiefs said Lthey wanted no part of it. Went down the drain.
Now why that would happen? Butthis has happened, Lhis

hapoened ehough times with various congressional committees

that they had difficulty in accomplishing what they ought to

accomplish., Senatorx [Arthurllﬁatkinﬁ from Utah, &2 Mormon, was

the only one who I know of who insisted on being on the indian

Affalrs Committee of the Senate, and that was becausa of his
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Maormon background, their relationship with the Indians, he
thought he was paying off a debt which the Mormons owed the
Indians. Well, they eventually got a plan approved and
adopted and they did develop the area, or at least 2 part of
that area out at Palm Springs, and I'm sure the Indians are
reaping great benefits of it, but it's kind of 8 frustrating

sort af Life.

SOAPES: 1It's a situation where the goevernment couldn't really

be sure they had an agrecmentb--

CHILGEON: That's right., Just like the Klamaths, you knew, who
assured Congress that a large majority of the Indians didn't
want money, they'@ take their share in as a pgart of the forest
and then turn right around and da kthe contrary. Buk, anyhow,
the country has Lhe chligation to tough it out and to do what
they can to bxry and scolve what everybody calls the Indian
probklem which is not a problem-—it's a bunch of separate prolb-
lems that variows Indians and Indian tribhes have. And, well

anyway, it wasz an interesting experience.

[ITnbkerrupbion]
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SCOAPES: When was it that you moved up from assistant secreatary

te under secretary?

CHILSON: iIn March, 1957. PBrasjdent Risenhower appeinted me
under secretary, arnd I was confirmed very shortly after the

nomination.

EOARPES: And as T understand from talking with vou thers was
a Helium Poligy Working Group that was put together. How did

that group coma abowkE?

CHITSON: Well T can't tell you, I'11 give you this short

hackground, As 1 recollect, there were some privately owned
helium extraction plants that had heen constructed, and this,
I think, was during the first World War when they wanted the

helium for the use of blimps. Well, after the war there was

ne particular demand for helium and evenlually Lhe private
plants want oul of production and Lhe Interior Deparbment,

under the branch of the Burean of Mines, had a helium--1 suppase
that's the helium afbivity group that (Tey speak of. anyway,
the Department of the Interior became the only producer ol

helium in this country and although the uses were small,
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nevertheless they did have a demand and they did produce a lot
of helium, as illoztrated by the fact that the ClLiff Side gas
field down there at Amarillo was exhausted, and so it indicaled
that there was gunite a bit of heliom used, but not to any sreat
excess, Now, if you want me to relate how we got into this

helium development deal?

SonpPES: Yesm,

CHILSON: The Bureau of Mines had been trying to create interest
fome place within the government Lo not let this, what Lhey
helieved was a very wvsaluable nabural respource=-=heliuom, go bo
waste becagse helium is found as, maybe lwo percent or three
percent element of the total guantity of gas as it flows to

the fuel market.

SOMPES: Right. WNatural gas.

CHILSON: Natural gas. But nobody took any particular interest
in the Bureau of Mines' concerns about trying Lo do semething
about conserving helium. However, the helium uses bogan to

expand. They found during the second World War what they could
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do with the uze of helium as a shield in welding flammahle
materiale., They got inte the missile and rocket area and they
found Lhat Tor various reasons helium sclved problems for them.
The atomic reactors, they found that helium did something for
them, that it was readily available, the helium was: it would
de a job cheaper and better thon anything elee, the idea

being the molecule is 2o small that it can be used as a leak
detectant in the atonic reactors. The moleécule is s small
that it will discover a leak so small that it weuld lesk anly a
quart of &ir in what, Lwenty years, two thousand years? I mean
unbelievable. All right. Now the Bureau of Mines knew this,
but nobody else (you know, there was no presaure, bthere was no
emergency) thought abeout it. I was sitting at my desk ocne day
and I got a telephone call, don't remember from whom, and they
were going to have to close down a plant, as I remember dewn in
Hentucky, that was manufacturing electrie refrigerators, and
they were going bo throw several hundred people out of work
because Cthe Depactment of the Interior wouldn't furnish thom
with helium and that helium was a necessary ingredient of their

manufacturing provcess. Well Secretary Seaton was away and it
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didn't take much imagination to know what the President would
think ahout throwing several hundred psople cut of work =nd
Laking time. 5o I got aheld of the Bureau of Mines and I
talked to Dr. Seibel who was in charge of the helium activity

and had been for a long--

SOAPES: How 15 his name spelled, sic?

CHTLEON: S-e-i-k-£-1. Well we scurried around and found =
supply of helium and solwved that temporary emorgoncy, but at

the same Lime I nsked Dr. Seibel Lo give me a complete briefing
on this whele helium picture, because if it was that impdrtant
that if we couldn'l supply somebody, it would throw pecple out
of work, and we wore the only suppliers of heliom in the country
we were in 8 kind of touchy situation. T can proceed to tell
yau on the tape the progress of this, or I can give you a copy
of Lhe address T made down at the helium centennial which covers
the matter in a more logical way than I could probably do it

by giving it orally. Sop if you'd like to read this and then

see if you have any questions about it that you think would
supplement this, that might be the most oxpeditious way of

handling it.
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[Interruption]

SORPES: There were seaveral recommendations and alternatives
for handling the helium problem that came aleng: plant con-
strugtion, a pipeline system, private industry sellingit to

the government., Wnat wers the major considerations in deter-

mining which alternative would ke utilized?

CHILSON: Well really you only had three alternatives you =ee.
Cne was to go out and buy up the gas. Just couldn't buy the

heXliam——-

SOAPEE: You had o buy all of ik

CHILSOM: --you had to buy all the gas., Well if you bought

all the gas within a 250 mile radius of Amarillo, Texas, you

ges, it just wasn't feasible. The second alterhative you had
is the one that we used, of getting the right to build extrac-
tion plants on the pipeline. And as the fuel went ko market,

vou would take out the helium. The third, I've forgotten Just
how I phrased it;, but it's in here, Oh yes, the third wasijust

te pass legislation prohibiting the marketing of helium-hoaring

gas before the helium was extracted. But that would be; well, to
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put it very wildly, just wouldn't be feasible. Because to

rell 8 pipeline company that's taking & large part of the fuel
for the use pf the Chicago industrial arez and tell thoem that
they had to take all the helium out of it before they sent it
on, there was no general wmarket for helium, or very little—-
the biggest market was government and, well, just not feasible.
50 the only feasible way was for the government to Build or
cause to be built by someone, eXtraction plants on the majer
pipalines and take the helium out as it was produced and then
stick it away in the CLiff 5ide gas field which had been
exhausted, and then draw it oot as you peeded it. But, of
course, even that program, well I think we estimated somewhere,
five hundred million to eight hundred million dollars it weould
cost, because before you could sell the helium, you were taking
holium out at a much greater rate thasn there was a market for.
rnd so the conservation effort would have to pay for the helium

and then get its money back X number of years from now.

SORPES: Once the government began to show this strong interest
in helium conservation, did private industry then begin te

start showing moré interest?
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CHIISON: Not very much, As a matter of fact, when we discussed
this within the administration—-I'm talking now about discussing
it with representatives of Commerce and Defense, the AEC and

the Burcau of the Budget and Gordon Gray, the Office of Defense
Mobiligatiaon, they were unanimous that o private industry would
pver build 2 plant. And that was protity well evidenced by the
sact rhat when this shortage showsd up, You know that I talked
ahout, we immediately got busy Lo close Lhat gap. And we made

a deal with the Colorado Inkerstate Gas Company to build an
oxtraction plant on ita pipeline that ran near Keyes, oklahoma.
The government built it, and with that additional volume we

got out of immediate danger. We had enough production with the
old production plus Lhis new plant, =20 we were on pretty solid
ground by that time. Bubt ho one al that time showed any

tnterest in building the plant. colorado Interstale Gas

company wanted no part aof building the helium plant. Wa just
a1l assumed, or perhaps 1 better say that in talking ahout it
we all eame to the conclusion we'd gekt no privale plants built.
and, of course, we were wrong, and there were a lot of private

plants built. The President, after the presentation at Che
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cabinet meeting of this preblem, he said, "We just walled fif-
tesn years too long., Now get on with the job and it private
industry won't do it, we'll do it curselves." There wasn't
any guestion about it. 1 know I was surprised that private

industry built as many plants as they did.

SOAPES: Il was a guestion of it wasn't an economically profit-

abla situation, there wasn't enough need for it?
F) 4

FHILSON: Well the only market was the goversment, you =see,
Well, let me put it this way. I think everybody pretly well
assumed that the only market of any conseguence would be the
federal government, o put in this conservation pool. I'm not
Log sure it turned out that way, although I have not kept close
encugh track of what's happened since, PBut I think that Chare
wora a number of markets developed where the product was sold
direet by the private plants and then they had the bagk-up
course if they couldn't sell it on the market that they had
the government teo fall back on. Now I never know exactly why
it appeared that private industry wouldn't have any interest,

but they hHadn't shown any to date and here the govermment was
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the only prodocer, and then thesz privale companies had Lhe
gas with the helium in it and, of coorse, if it didn't do any-

thing else, it created an awiul let of litigation.

A
;
o=
ur
i

oh?

CHILSON: Thoy eventuslly began Lo litigate as Lo who was to
receive what for the helium. Did the landowner own Lhe helium
and was he entitled te & percentage of what they got for the

sale of the helium? Or was it the ene who togk the lease?

Or was it the fellow who Grilied the well? Or was it the company
that transported the gas? Who got the money for it? And they're
atill litigating about it. I got a churkle put of this. As I
told you, Judge Breitenstein was 8 yood friend of mine and he

had to write the opinion in some of these cases, helium cases,

SORPES: For the record on the tape, he's showing me a list

of cases, it's about fifty some-odd as of January, 1971,

CHILSON: With a note on ite--

SOAPES: "To the chap who caused it all, with the compliments
of the author." [Laughter]

Well is there anything else about this helium conserva-
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tion program that we haven't touched on that you can recall

that would e of interest?

CHITLEON: No, other than what I have detailed in my speech at
2marillo., That should pretty well cover it, I think. Bow if
you do wish, the actual bills that were intreduced inlteo Congress,
I think veu'd have po difficulty getting those. Now I notice
[ have in my file socme of the hills that were introduced, but

I'm not sure of which one eventually: passed. So consequently-—

SOAPES: We would have the malerial on the bill that eventually

got to the President's desk in our bill file--

CHILSON: Yes, yes. Yes, yvou'd have that, yes,

SOAPES: -—--with the wvarious departmental recommendations. We
would not, of course, have bthe athers. Our files of government

documents are sKimpy.

CHILEMMN: Well you asked mo hack along the way aboult the
operations within an administration. I might just add this.
The ¢roup that I worksd with within the administration ih

devising the program in addilion of course o Lhe Bureau of
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Mines and whatnot, but outside of Interior as I teld VO WErE
Commerce, Defense Department, Atomic Energy Commisaion, Budget,
zand the Office of Dofense Mobkilization. Well, in presenting
pur proposal to this commitleos for their consideration, it soon
became clear that yvou had to taske into consideration that thess
various departments had their own problems. Now the Defonse
Department said, "No; it would be s mistake, this helium pro-
gram," yet thay were the biggest user in helium. They used it
in their defense industry and, as I say, a lot of their programs.
"Well what are you going to do if your supply of helium
iz exhausted, you don't have any more helium available Lo you?2"

“Wwell, we can use other things, such as argon,” I Lhink--
SOABRS: Right, argon's an inert gas,

CHILSON: Yes, well they had substitules,

"Well do you have it in sufficient supply?”

"Well we think we can get it "
"How much is it going to ¢ost you?'"
"gell, within reason," And so onf.

They had had ng difficulties; they had gotten all the
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helium they wanted and they got it at a very cheap price,

they didn't want a change, and you eould understand that,

IT you were running their businegs, wWhy vou wouldn't want a
change just biecause it appears that someday you might tun out
of it. ¥You can alwaya find something else. Commerce had, I
forget now what their ghjections to it were, but I think theirs

was likely the total cost it was going to bea to the program,

S0APES: Was this coming From Neil McElroy; was he defense at

Ehat tima?

CHITSON: No, this group did not include Lhe secretaries, an
agstesitant secrgtary, that Lewvel, and they were talking, of
course, to their bureau people, IMheir career ssrvice people
and the people that operated their programs. Atomic Energy
Commizsion felt a yood deal lihe Defense and so on. And, of

courae, the Burcan of the Budget was horrified at the total

cost of this program, you know, as it would ba over a long
period of years, overyvbody assuming that private industry would
not want to come into the picture. And even if they did coms

inta the picture, what they didn't sell on the open market,
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the government would have to buy from the individual plants
anyhow; so vou mighk, same as producing. 5o all of these
different people and agencies have ltheir own problems, they
wolld, more or less, come first and foremcsbk. 2nd it 's kind
of interesting o see how the government works because when
the btime came (hat there was an ultimate decision toe be made
as to whether we were going to continue to let this wastage
take place or whether we wera going to enter on a8 conssrvation
pregram, President Eisenhewer, under his theery of eperations,
he had heard, you know, the comments of sach of these groups
at Cabinet meetingz, Secratary of Commerce and Secretary of
nefense and whatbtnobk and, It he never asked for a vobe on
anylthing. He'd ask for comments and so on, but he took the
responsibility for the ultimate decision., That's the way it
worked in this ecase. Although Budget didn't support it and

Commerce didn't support it and Defonse didn't support it--

nevaerthelesa the President having to take the overall view of

what's good for the--

SOAPES: The whole, yes,
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CHITLEON: everything, he made the decisicon. And I thought at
the time, and I have recad comments by so many people since Lo

tha same effect, that government sometimss can be so =low in
coming to a decision and in other instances arriving at it so
guickly Lhat you just makae your head swim. And what that means

I don't know, but it's the way government works. Sometimes, you
know, just takes forever to =ccomplish anything, and. in the case
of helium, ones we got the word from Freszident Eisenhower, why,

away 1t wenk.

SOAPES: One general guestion I'd like Lo pose sbout the whole
area in which the Department of Interior was concerned--1've

seen comments by histerians, journalists; I['ve seen a lilktle
decumentary evidence suggesting tha same thing, that Eisonhower 's
mnin concerns when he was in office were foreign policy, defanse
policy, that sort of thing, and that other issues, the purely
domestic issues,; had a8 second level of impertance to him, Did
you have that feeling when you were in the Department of Lhe

Interiar?

CHILSON: Mo. Entirely to ths contrary. Anybody in a position

like President of the United States, or like the president of
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a@ big corporation, the president ef a school system, whatever
it is, that Nhas the wvltimate decision-making power and he's
got the responailkility to make it has priorities of matters
that are important. If you're about to be engaged in an ouk-
break of a war, why of course you're rot parlbicularly interested
in how much helium you're going to conserve at the minube you're
making thase decisions., But nevertheless he still knows.

Now the reason T say what 1 did, President Eisenhower, at
lcast during the period of time that T waz there, dnsfsted that
cach of his Cakinet members furnish to him once a woesk on one
page, letter-size page, things of importance that had happened
in the past waek in his department that the President should
know about, HNow that's one way he kept himself informed, and
if it was overlooked, my information iz that the séorotary. who
pverlooked it was made to understand in no uncertain lLecms
that thisz was nolk somsthing Lo e done at their convenisEnoe,
but was to be done and continued to he done til he wanted it

stopped.

SOAPES: So you felt that when problems came to the attention

of the President from the Department of the Interior that thay
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got an egual shake with the Department of Defense, the State
Bepariment, the same thing in kerms of appropriations and that

sort of thing, in tLerms of the priorities of the administration.

CHILEON: ¥e=s, I think there's no doubt about it, I think

there's ng doubt about 1k,

[Interroption)

SOAPES: You worked very closely with Fred Seaton.

CHILSON: Yeaes.

BORFRS: Whal can you tell me about the man in Lerms of per-
sonality, his working habits, what type of person hie was Lo

woark withe

CHILSON: Well it's rather hard to capsulize but I'11l give

it a Lry. Of couwrse, he was 8 nowspaperman Lo begin with, so
he had a great curiosity about what was going on in the world.
Due to his background, he had a areat underahanﬁ{ug of politics,
what motivates people, what is interesting to the publie, what
is interesting to the news media, and 2o forth. He had a

background in which I had not had an oppertunity to have brushed
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elbows with, so to speak. He had a great intelleck, very
quick mind, a great power of decisien, and a great power of
accomplishment. Of course, I copsidered him, by the time I
gaot through with my two years back there, as one of my very
close friends and probably one of the most, well undoubtedly
4 man who gave me during the lwo years of my association with
him an cutlook on a lot pf things, the outlook of people who

are not invelved in the legal professien with which I had Lheen
for so long a period of time so closely associated. And consc-—
quently it was a very enriching experience, What more to say
about him--he was hopnest and ferthright and determined, and when
the chips were down he could stand fast in the face of yreat
oppesition, great coriticism and o on. &And his ability to

accomplish, I think, is weéll indiecated by the fact that when

Senator Mckay left as Secretary of the Interior CLhe nowspapers
were full of “give away, give sway" coriticism day sfter day of
Lthe Department of the Tnterior and so on, gencrated largely

in part by these groups that I referred to as conservation
groups and so on and so Torth. &and I think it's fair Lo =ay

that after he finished his term as Secretary of the Interior
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that most of the organizatiens, conservation organizationsa,
recognized him as fair, lthat he was in fact a2 conservationist
even though he didn't agree with them in all respects, but

they respected him and they reapected His idess and attitudes.

SOAPES: You would say he was a better solitician, in the best

sanse Oof that term, than McKay had boén,

CHILSON: Waell, yes. T don't know (oo much sbout Senator
Mc¥ay's background. Bul here you had a man wha'd devoled; if
not all of his life to politices bercause he was a successial

publisher, he was a sucecessful operator of radio staticns and
g0 on and very successful in business, Nevertheless, ha was

one of that small group that stavrted the Young Republicans

way back when. And he had been in politics up to his neck, I
don't ¥now bow early, at loast gince that Lime. T kneow it
goes back that far hocause Sepnator Allott and Senator Seaton
ware in that gmwmup that Formed the Young Republican arganiza-

Lion.

SOAPES: BSo Fred Seaton was a very compelent man whoe understoepd

his jok and how to get it done.
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CHILSON: He knew how to get things done,

sOAPES: Who did you have most contact with at the White House
when you were there, or 4id you commmunicate directly with the

White House much?

CHILEON: No, I didn't, becaunse Lhe contacts with the White
House, whenever Secretary Seaton was net away, 31l the cantacts
were with Secretary Seaton. My greatest contact with the White
House was  in Secretary Seaton's absences 1 attended the Cabinet
mertings ih his place, The President was gomewhat differsent
than many presidents. He insisted on albtendanece at Cabineb
mestings and they were held regularly and he expected them

ta Ibe on time, which was 7:30 as 1 remember, 7:30 or B:00, I
don't know. But Secrstary Scaton, you RKnow, early in "57 had

a disec pperaticn; he was in the hozpitnl for guite some wesks,

and during that peried of time, of course, I had the contacts

that He would have had with the White House and 1 altendad
Canhinet meetings. We also had Hawaiian and hlaskan ststehood
pills, and we were carrying Lhe ball on that =c ta speak because

they were in the Depariment of the Interior as territories. &S
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a result of Lhat and some other things, Secretary Seaton was
aonge from Washington, I wouldn't say a goed deal of the time,
bt he was absent freguently during Cabinet meetings. And,
as a result, I attended Cabinet meetings in his absence. I
had more contact with the While House that way perhaps than

any other.

SOAPES: Vrom your slLtepndance at Cabinet meclings—and I realize
you didn't attend all of them, that you attendsd them in the
atead of Secretary Seaton--what did you feel was the purpose
of the cabinat meetigg? Why did Eiscnhower hawve the Cabinot
meeting se often? What did he do there that he couldn't have

done without the Cabinet meesting?

CHTISON: Well my impression was he probably principally wanted
to accomplish three things. Firet he wanted to accomplish,

think, an opportunity to express his feelings about certain

matters to a group of people who he felt he could trust angd whose
ppinieon he valued., Secondly I think he did it to give his
rabinst officers-——you see from his military I think he believed

a lot in staflff and T think that he felt that the Cakinet was
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his staff, so to speak, and that iT stalf had something on
their minds Lhat they thought bore Aiscussion that he wanled
to give them 2 Lime and a place whers they were grouped
together to be heard. and the way he accomplished this was
ihat any Cabinet officer that wanted Lo discuss anything at
rabinet mesting would reguest that it be put on the agenda by

Che——

SOAPES: Ry the Cabinet Seoretarlat?
CRTLSON: Yes. What was his name ?
SOAPRES: Max Rabb.

CHILSON: Yos, Max Rabb. @Gosh, your memory sure gets away wWith
yow., Yes. And if there was room for it and if the President
consented, then they'd putz it on there and they would have a

discugsion. Thirdly, T tHink he wanted it as an gpportunity

to find out what was going on in his gevernment. 1t's a Dbig
government and things are going on all the time Lhat the
president can't possibly know alout and even the While House

skaff can't know about. ID alher words, if some G-5 Interior
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employee up in Alaska got in Lrouble up at Point RBarrow, it
might be a8 lorng time for the Presiadent te ever find ewt about
it, Ik some newspaper reporier at hiz next press conference
might say to him, "Mr. President, how sbhout Jos Doakes up at
Point Harrow? [ understand he got in trouble.® And the
President 's got ko say, "Well, never heard of it." HNow, of
course, you can't keeo Ltrack of everyvthing, but it's just

surprising what vou can keep in mind.

SBOAPES: We've talked at great Yength and ahoul a number of
things. IS there anvthing else that comes o your mind that
you would particularly like Lo get into this interview that

we haven't mantioned [rom vour experiences in Washington? ©Or,
purhaps a good way to clese it might be a brief commenl on

your parlt of Eisenhower's interest in Department of Interior
matters. I know that we've talked about the problem of priori-
ties, of Inmterior versus other departments. Was Eisenhower

somEone who was well bhriefed in advance on his own about

pepariment of Tnterior matters or was this seomething that he

had to he educated on?
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CHILSON: Well, probably both and he prohably had te he educated
on most of it because there wouldn't be any other way that he
could get ik, But the President had a great background that I
think historians will eventwally recognize, although current
ones don't seem to. For example, on the Alaskan statehood bill,
he just put his Foot down and =aid, "We are not going ko have
Alaska as a state agnless the federal governmént retains control
of the northern portion." Now nebody else came up with that, This
came up ko him from his own experience in the military, 1'm
satisfied, when they conceived the idea that the Russians might
invade this country or Canada through Alsska and that therefore
the Tederal govermment showuld be in a position that it could
treat that area up there as a war zZone anytime Lthat it desired,
and that theréfore it sheuldn't relinguish security control and

s¢ on. And thalk's the way the bill was finally written and

that's the way the bill was passed. Now that came from him,
no one else. To a lepzer extent, he would discuss the Hawsiian
statehood bill and the details of the bill, althoagh not so

much. T don't know what else I gan say about that. I can add

one personal incident that occurred,
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I'd had no experience in the mining business, and Congross
was considering a domestic mining Bill, somelhing to keep a
nacleus of domestic mining o that in case of emsrgency wWe
wouldn't be out of luck becsuse we couldn't get the metals
from foreign countries. Now somewhere aleng the way in his
carcety he had picked uwp the price relationship as beiween lead,
zinc, and copper. And o he sent word one day that he wanted
En sps Fred and Pred was not thers so I went over to sce him
with respect to this. 1 don't ¥now how long it had bean that
fe had chbtained that formila--there's a relationship, I don't
mean the exbet same deollars but if vou got so wmuch for lead
vou should get X percent for zinc and s8¢ an,

Fred told me on many occasions that this happened guite
frequently in his dealings with the President. The President
wbuld ¢ome up with information, you wouldn't have any idea how
he got it, but it was guite apparent that he had yotten it inm

His brosd educatien during his years of military service.

of course, I suppose when in trying to appraise a porson
with whem you have an association, such as serving in. the

bresident's administration; that yon couldn't be vexry pbjective
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shout it, that's prohably true of myself-—1 can 't he very
ohjective about it. FEut 1 am satisfied that I know enough
ateut how he conducled his administration and that his basic
and fundamental ideals and standards were such that history
will eventually recognize that he was a vVery good man and a

very aood Fresident.

SOATES: Thank you very much, 8ir.
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